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Trustees Report including Strategic Report for 2022-23

Strategic Report

The Scottish Association of Citizens Advice Bureaux is a company limited by guarantee and a
registered charity and is governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Association which set
out the objects and powers of the charitable company. In the event of the company being
wound up the liability of the members is limited to £1.

The Association is also known as Citizens Advice Scotland (CAS).

Who we are?

Scotland’s Citizens Advice network is an essential community service that empowers people in
every corner of Scotland through our local bureaux and national services by providing free,
confidential, and impartial advice, We use people’s real-life experiences to influence policy and
drive positive change. We are on the side of people in Scotland who need help, and we change
lives for the better.

At the heart of the network there are 59 individual Citizens Advice Bureaux across Scotland,
all operating as independent charities in their own right and generally focusing on providing
support directly to citizens. Each of these organisations is a member of the Scottish Association
of Citizens Advice Bureaux (SACAB).

As the national component of the network, Citizens Advice Scotland provides training and
information to bureau teams, as well as a rigorous quality assurance and monitoring
programme, ensuring that the same high quality of advice is available across Scotland. We
also provide support services such as IT, Human Resources and Finance, where doing so
nationally is more efficient and effective. We work to secure national services that provide
support to individuals on specific issues, both in Scotland and across Great Britain, delivered
through bureaux wherever possible and directly where that is most appropriate. We also carry
out research, policy work and campaigning on key issues - based on quantitative and
qualitative analysis of the advice sought by clients from across the network.

Our vision, mission and values

In 2022 Citizens Advice Scotland agreed a new Strategic Framework which includes a new
Vision, Mission, and Values,

Our vision is for a Fairer Scotland where everyone has the advice and information, they
need to realise their rights, and where the barriers to accessing those rights are effectively
challenged.

We have four mission statements that describe what we do as a Network:

We help people navigate systems and access their rights.

We build resilience in local communities.

We support the realisation of human rights.

We help change policies and practices to ensure they work for people.

VWV VY

The strategy also includes a set of five values — person-centered, empowering, supportive,
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inclusive, and collaborative — which capture who we are, how we work and what we believe
in. They describe how we treat people, and how we expect to be treated in return.

The twin aims of advice and advocacy continue to be at the centre of everything that we do.
We hold the largest data set on societal issues in Scotland outside the public sector and
because we are wholly independent from government, we can and do use our insight,
evidence, and influence to provide a genuine voice for people in public policy.

The Scottish Citizens Advice network has a footprint in every community in Scotland and by
linking this local offering with our national expertise in advice provision we can ensure that
people can access advice where and how they want, regardless of where they live in Scotland.

Around 2.5 million people check our online advice pages every year, with a
further 164,000 people getting one to one advice in 2022-23 In total, CABs unlocked
£142million for people in 2022-23,

Our advocacy work spans working with governments, regulators and business at a UK and
Scottish level on improving areas of particular detriment, undertaking research and delivering
awareness and education campaigns.

We combine high-quality research, first-hand citizens’ case studies from across the Citizens
Advice network with industry monitoring to identify and analyse existing and potential
consumer issues. This work allows us to engage with decision-makers in government,
companies and regulators and achieve changes that will benefit consumers and citizens in
Scotland. This virtuous circle of advice and advocacy delivers results for communities across
Scotland. We believe that every citizen in Scotland should have access to free, impartial and
confidential advice that helps them make informed decisions whenever they need it and
however, they choose to access it.

Strategic framework

CAS's Strategic Framework for 2022-25 includes a renewed focus on working together as a
network to deliver positive outcomes for the people of Scotland. We have included a Strategic
Delivery strand on ‘network’ for the first time to support a proactive approach to nurturing
relationships across the network and encouraging partnership and collaborative working. This
is supported by our commitment to co-production.

The strategy was developed following extensive engagement with CABs and CAS staff.

Citizens Advice Scotland is a national organisation which is part of the
Citizens Advice Network in Scotland:
CAS's primary role is to make sure the Citizens Advice Bureaux in Scotland
have the support they need to deliver on the network’s collective mission.
- : CAS respects the local autonomy of bureaux and will increasingly involve
[
g:;;::;zgd;:i: them in priority setting, including through co-design and co- production.
in the Network = CAS delivers national services when appropriate within the locally led
model.
CAS works with government, industry, regulators, and national
organisations to advocate on behalf of the people who use our
network’s services at a national level.
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We will support our network to provide high-quality advice on a wide
range of issues, including through training, online advice and quality
assurance.

We will work with bureaux to help them develop and to build their
resilience to ensure that advice is available in local communities across
Scotland.

We will work with our network to offer multi-channel advice, including
face-to-face so that people can access advice in a way that suits their
needs.

We will innovate to ensure that people receiving remote advice

benefit from local knowledge on a breadth of issues, including

through further integration of the Extra Help Unit managed by CAS.

We will raise awareness of people’s rights and ensure that people can
access those rights and have access to channels of redress when
necessary.

We will work as a network to speak out on behalf of people at a local and
national level who do not otherwise have a voice and will use our evidence
base to challenge policy and practice that works against people.

We will work to strengthen the Citizens Advice Network in Scotland,
promoting reciprocal relationships between bureaux and protecting our
footprint in communities across Scotland.

We will commit to action to tackle climate change that makes Scotland a
fairer, greener, and more equal society, and we will advocate on behalf of
individuals mnsF affected by climate change and the net zero transition.

Citizens Advice
Scotland’s
Priorities

|
Strategic Fundingand  Service Building
Delivery Areas Income = Delivery Brand

Advocacy
and Network
Influence

The challenges of the past year

In 2022/23 the network, while still dealing with the aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic,
faced the impact of the worst cost of living crisis in living memory, which drove increased
demand for advice and need for policy influencing. Inflation and interest rates reached
decade long highs, while energy bills increased at record levels impacting significantly on
citizens across Scotland and GB and driving demand for our services.

For the first time on record, advice around gas and electricity displaced a single social
security issue as the area of highest demand from December to March. In total utilities
advice increased by 13%. Meanwhile demand for food bank advice increased by 11% in
April 2022-2023 and the network helped people with crisis advice over 118,000 times.

CABs also noted an increase in certain demographics seeking cost of living related advice at
a higher level than advice generally. This included single person, working age households,
those out of or unable to work, and council rented tenants.

The network continued its modernization agenda in response to these challenges in order
to diversify and expand how it delivers advice to citizens across Scotland through different
channels and to campaign to encourage people to seek advice quickly. Face to face
service delivery, in communities, for communities and by communities, remains at the heart

Cilizens Advice Seotland Annual Accounts 2022/23 7



THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A reglstered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limiled by guaranlee SC089892

of our offering however, and our local telephone service builds on this as does our webchat
and chatbot technology which we have trialed in a number of CAB in this financial year.
We will continue to look at how we meet the demand for advice in local communities in the
year ahead. In addition, we have been enhancing our data process and analytics to ensure
that our advocacy works captures and responds to these issues in quick time so that we
can speak for citizens to policy makers and deliver wide scale changes for those that are
detrimentally impacted.

As a charity with a Royal Patron in the Princess Royal, CAS observed the national period of
mourning following the passing of Her Majesty the Queen and our Chair wrote to the
Princess Royal to express our sympathy.

Funding and income

We recognise that appropriate funding and income are critical to the success and impact of
the whole Citizens Advice network in Scotland, and that we have a key role to play in securing
it.

The Citizen Advice Service in Scotland receives core funding from both national and local
government. CAS's primary funder is the UK Government, which is delivered through our
sponsor department, the Department of Business and Trade. This money pays for the
development of our advice content, as well as funding our training and quality assurance
services to CAB. These are essential in ensuring that the advice which the network provides
is of the highest quality and optimizes outcomes for citizens across Scotland. UK government
funding also provide IT support to the CAB service which ensures that collectively CAB have
access to a robust and secure IT infrastructure to support the service digital offering.

CAS also receives funding at a national level from the Scottish Government to deliver consumer
advocacy on behalf of Scottish citizens. This is essential in creating a voice for Scottish citizens
in the consumer landscape. Scottish government also provide funding to the network for
specific advice projects in devolved areas such as money and debt advice and energy advice.
Both UK and Scottish government provide funding to deliver the specialist energy advice
through the Extra Help Unit within the network.

A breakdown of the main funding sources for CAS is shawn on the next page.

In addition to CAS funding the local CAB received funding from their local authority as well as
a number of local projects. CAS continues to look at ways to diversity its funding to build on
the funds provided by both governments and to ensure that it can continue to deliver outcomes
for citizens across Scotland and maintain the holistic advice and advocacy offering which sits
at the heart of our service.

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23 8



THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A registered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC089892

\‘||\
<

Inceme 2622-23
£22,369K
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Unrestricted Core

. £3,637K UK Gevernment - Department for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strateqy/Business and Trade -
Core (2022: £3,241K)

¢ £625K Energy Companies (2022: Nil)
. £282K Other (2022: £240K)

Restricted - Projects

£7,420K Scottish Government (2022: £8,085K)

D £2,926K UK Government - Department for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy/Business and Trade -
Consumer (2022: £2,347K)

. £2,135K UK Government - Department for Work and
Pensions - Help to Claim (2022; £2,347K)

@ £1,987K Energy Companies (2022: £544K)

£1,802K Money & Pensions Service - Pensionwise
(2022; £1,852K)

. £538K Gamble Aware (2022: £200K)

@ :£480K Poppy Scotland (2022: £512K)
. £384k Energy Industry Levy Funding (2022: Nil)
. £186K Other (2022: £512K)

The 2021-22 Financial Year is shown as 2022 on this page



THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A ragistered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC089892

A breakdown of all the projects that have been delivered in the past year are included in the
table below.

Scottish Citizens Advice network 22/23 £'m  21/22 £'m
Advice services to citizens including: 13.8 14.9
Armed Services Advice Project 0.5 0.5
EU Settlement Scheme 0.2 0.4
Energy Best Deal 1.1 0.7
Gambling Support Service 0.5 0.2
Money Talk Team (formerly Financial Health Check) 2.7 1.5
PASS 0.8 0.8
Pensionwise 1.8 1.8
Specialist Debt Advice 0.7 1.6
Universal Credit 2.2 3.9
Welfare Reform 0.7 b
Other 2.7 2.0
Advocacy services on behalf of citizens 4.3 4.1
Support to our local bureaux 3.0 2.8
Total investment in services to Scottish citizens 21.2 21.8

Service Delivery

CAS rolled out “Local Calls for Local CABs” an Al driven no-code solution so that clients
could phone a single number and be directed to their local CAB. This meets the aim of
giving consumers a single access point to the network as well as ensuring the benefits of
local advice are retained.

This work has been recognised across a range of awards including the Digital Leaders award
and runner up at the National Helplines awards. Further AI related work included the
establishment of a chatbot service on the refreshed Money Talk Team website and as a trail
on a number of local websites.

This success in using CivTech challenge funds to deliver tangible outcomes for consumers
and service providers has led to the award of 3 further CivTech challenges, drawing in a
potential £1m of further funding to improve services. These challenges are directed at;
improving and streamlining our data capture processes to free up adviser time; using
technology to better support our volunteers and establish best practice in this area across
the network, and identifying vulnerable consumers with energy problems so that we can
prioritise and respond to them quickly.

This work in the energy advice area has been particularly important in a year of
unprecedented demand for energy advice. The Extra Help Unit delivered exceptional results
for consumers across Great Britain this year despite this demand level, dealing with over
40,000 cases. In addition to this EHU staff member George Holmes won the Consumer
Champion award at the Energy UK awards and the Unit achieved the British Standard
verification certificate for Inclusive Service Provision for identifying and responding to
consumer vulnerability.

Citizens Advice Scofland Annual Accounts 2022/23 10
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On debt and money advice the Money Talk Team service was launched in Autumn 2022.
Encompassing a new website with chatbot functionality and delivering additional support to
clients through specialist debt advice, the service reflects a more outcomes driven approach
to our relationship with the Scottish Government. The service was signposted to during a
Scottish Government marketing campaign in February 2023.

The Help to Claim service, delivered on behalf of the Department of Work and Pensions was
extended for another year with a view to a further year's extension into 2023/24.

Building brand

CAS was a leading voice in the media around the cost-of-living crisis in the past year
generating around £29.46 million worth of “earned coverage” through media relations work
from 1 April 2022 — 31 March 2023. This covers online, print, and broadcast media coverage
of proactive and reactive work.

As a network we ran a number of campaigns this year which focused on the issues that matter
most to people in our communities. In autumn 2022 CAS ran the ‘Our Advice Adds Up’
campaign, focused on income maximization to help people make the most of their finances
and our winter 22/23 campaign saw ‘Big Energy Saving Winter’, facusing on helping people
deal with soaring energy bills, Our ‘Debt Happens’ ran in spring 2022 in the lead up to the
new financial year to help clients in the post-Christmas period. In a new step the campaigns
directed potential clients to a range of advice options, such as online self-help tools, specialist
services like Help to Claim and Money Talk Team, as well as signposting towards local CABs.

Our weekly column in the Herald newspaper had its third anniversary in February 2023 and
moved to a new Monday slot, and then moved again to a Saturday slot. The column continues
to take contributions from across teams and directorates at CAS. We remain the only charity
with a weekly opinion column in a national newspaper.

Our high visibility on cost-of-living issues saw CAS Chief Executive Derek Mitchell asked to
present at an energy summit organized by the then First Minister, Nicola Sturgeon featuring
industry, consumer groups and anti-poverty organisations. CAS has also been invited to an
anti-poverty summit organised by the new First Minister, Humza Yousaf,

In addition to our monthly data reports CAS developed quarterly Cost of Living Analysis
reports, focusing on demographic demand for advice in cost-of-living areas and tracking
advice patterns across different subject areas, this is a unique insight for policymakers in
Scotland in terms of how people are experiencing the cost-of-living crisis.

As part of our strategic plan for 2022-25, CAS has commissioned brand research to develop a
deeper understanding of how the public view and engage with the network.

Advocacy and influence

We have continued to focus our advocacy work on the issues that matter to people and
which we know about through the issues that people bring to our CAB network. As a result
of this we led calls in Scotland for action on soaring energy prices last year which eventually
led to the establishment of the Energy Price Guarantee in Autumn 2022, and its extension in
Spring 2023. CAS continues to advocate for a social tariff in the energy market.

The UK government also responded to our call for action on the cost of living crisis with a

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23 11



THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A reglstered Scottish Charlty SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC089852

cost-of-living package targeted at vulnerable groups, such as disabled people and
pensioners, in Spring 2022,

CAS secured a number of positive policy changes in the Coronavirus (Recovery & Reform)
(Scotland) Bill passed in the summer of 2022, such as better protections for tenants in the
private rented sector and the Protected Minimum Balance for a Bank Arrestment increased
to £1,000. This change means people can have more money in household budgets before a
Bank Arrestment can take effect. The Bill also included extended statutory time limits and
provisions for remote hearings in the justice system. CAS called for additional menitoring
mechanisms to be included within the legislation in relation to remate hearings and we were
pleased to see these in the final legislation, as we believe it is in the best interest of those
accessing the justice system that these processes are monitored.

Further influencing work around social tariffs for broadband and mobile consumers also paid
off this year. As of 2023, there are now twenty-one social tariffs available for consumers
throughout the UK. Eleven of these social tariffs can be accessed by almost all consumers in
Scotland, whereas a year ago only one tariff was available in Scotland. This represents a
significant increase of availability over the past three years, and due to our effective
advocacy, industry and decision makers understand the need for affordable internet
connections that consumers can access easily.

CAS influencing led to the removal of consumers from the Moveable Transactions (Scotland)
Bill, a move which protects vulnerable people from being targeted by a high-cost credit,
largely unregulated, new market.

Following the establishment of the Consumer Scotland agency, there was a successful
migration of staff from CAS over to the new body, while the existing Impact team at CAS
was recalibrated to ensure policy staff could continue to focus on fuel poverty and net zero
issues. Our evidence base on these issues, informed by thousands of cases CABs across the
country deal with, will give us a unique voice in the continuing debate around net zero and
climate change. The initial relationship with Consumer Scotland has been productive and
should lead to a better consumer advocacy environment in Scotland.

Network

We continue to invest in the strength of our network to ensure that we deliver outcomes for
communities across Scotland. To do this we have further invested in co-design work this
year to ensure that CAB voices across Scotland are represented in the work that we do and
the way that we deliver services to them.

Our campaigns programme for 2022/23 was co-designed with the network and reflected the
growing cost of living crisis citizens faced. Despite concerns from CABs about their capacity
to engage with campaigns this year due to increased demand for advice, the co-design
element of Big Energy Saving Winter was oversubscribed, with double the number of CABs
receiving a co-design grant than initially planned for.

We continue to run a programme of capacity building for CAB staff to improve their skills in
campaigning work, with sessions on media, digital and design.

CAS worked with Aberdeen CAB around Council Tax debt to deliver better outcomes for local
people, developing template materials that other CABs can use to lobby their local councils.
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We asked the Network about their development priorities and as a result brought together a
programme of thematic work to strengthen capacity building across the network. These
themes include volunteer recruitment, training and development, staff and volunteer well-
being, knowledge sharing, human rights and equalities, governance support, fundraising and
resilience, relationship management and premises/net zero. The programme of work is
being developed using a co-design approach with our network.

Looking ahead

The cost of living crisis is far from over, and it will cast a shadow over the lives of tens of
thousands of people for years to come through debt and a lack of financial resilience. It is
crucial people have access to the free, impartial and confidential advice that the network
provides, and that the issues they experience are highlighted to government and industry to
develop better policy.

The coming year will see CAS continue to drive a modernisation agenda, embracing
technology to deliver services without sacrificing face to face advice, diversify funding
streams to bring more money into the network and continue to be a loud champion for
consumers and citizens across Scotland.

Our Funders

Citizens Advice Scotland enjoys support from a wide range of funders, and we obtain the
maximum value for every pound we spend. We'd like to thank all the organisations that
have supported us during 2022-23, We look forward to working with you in future years.,

Government Funders

UK Government Department for Business and Trade (formally Business, Energy & Industrial
Strategy)

UK Government Department for Work and Pensions

UK Government Home Office

Scottish Government Digital Directorate

Scottish Government Energy and Climate Change Directorate

Scottish Government Housing and Social Justice Directorate

Scottish Gavernment Tackling Child Poverty and Social Justice Directorate

Other Public Bodies
Accountant in Bankruptcy
NHS National Services Scotland

Other Major Funders
E.ON Energy Solutions
EDF Energy

Gamble Aware

Lloyds

NatWest Group

OVO Energy

Poppy Scotland
Scottish and Southern Energy
Scottish Gas Networks
Spina Bifida

TSB
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Financial Performance 2022/23
Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA)

The Statement of Financial Activities shows a 5% increase in Total Income, from
£21.4M in 2021/22 to £22.4M this year. Within this the income for national
projects delivered through Bureaux had a 2.4% reduction from 13.2M to 12.9M;
this was offset by increases in other funding areas.

Of the overall income total, 82% (2022: 91%) was received directly from the UK
and Scottish Governments. This move to diversify our income base is reflective
of our Funding and Income Strategy.

Income

25,000,000

20,000,000 1,927,702 4027920

15,000,000

10,000,000

5,000,000

19,480,452 18,350,608
2021/22 2022/23

B UK & 5cottish Government @ Other sources

Total Expenditure reduced by 3%, from £21.8M in 2021/22 to £21.2M. In line
with the reduction in funding for national projects CAS distributed £11.1M to
bureaux, down 10% from £12.2M in 2021/22.

Net Movement in Funds for the year was a surplus of £1.2M, compared with last
year’s deficit movement of £429K. The main factor driving this was the receipt of
additional income late in the year which was carried forward into 23/24 to
support the Volunteer Drive, creation of a Business Development Unit and the
ongoing investment in the networks Cyber security and infrastructure.

The funding for National projects does fluctuate year on year. The main
reduction this year were the loss of Help to Claim Face to Face funding (£1.7M)
because of the changes from the DWP. This was offset primarily by additional
funding for Energy projects with Energy Best Deal increasing by £684K, the Safe
and Warm Advisory Service £686K and Scottish Government Energy Advice
£420K,

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Our overall Reserves position at 31 March 2023 is £5.2M, which is an increase
compared to last year’s total of £4.0M. Within this year’s total, Restricted reserves
decrease from £0.6M to £0.3M. Unrestricted Reserves are £5M (2022: £3.5M), of
which £3.3M (2022: £2.45M) is designated leaving £1.7M (2022: £1.04M) of free
reserves. The increase in Unrestricted reserves is intended to provide financial
cover for required future investment in Network shared services, mainly IT
related, property exposures and pension costs which are out-with the control of

Our cash balances at 31 March 2023 were £5.9M, increased from last year’s position
of £3.9M. Of this cash balance £2.3M is Core Unrestricted which covers nearly 7
months costs, which is sufficient to cover our target of minimum 3 months in our cash
reserves.

Reserves At 1st April 2022 Movements during Year At 31st March 2023
£ E £
Unrestricted 3,489,545 1,470,696 4,960,241
Restricted 603,381 (301,296) 302,085
Total 4,092,926 1,169,400 5,262,326
Goverpance

The CAS Chair is an independent appointment and all other Trustees are
appointed as follows:
e Bureau Trustee (maximum 6) — this can be a volunteer in a CAB e.g. a
volunteer advisor or a member of the CAB's Board or a CAB Manager.
s External Trustee (maximum 6) — external to the CAB service.

Candidates for the Chair, Bureaux and External Trustees vacancies go through a
formal recruitment exercise with an external agency and the CAS Nominations
Committee. The CAS Nominations Committee comprises the Chair of the
Association, one Bureau and one External Trustee and a maximum of two
representatives from the CAB Network.

The initial phase of Trustee recruitment is for the Nominations Committee to
analyse the current composition of the CAS Board to identify any skills gaps. The
Committee can then determine the skills and experience required of any potential
Trustees to ensure the requisite expertise on the Board.

The Nominations Committee reviews all Trustee applications and interviews a
shortlist of candidates. Details of successful interview candidates are then
submitted to the CAS Board for agreement and the agreed potential Trustees are
presented to the SACAB members for election at the Annual General Meeting.
Part of the business of the Annual General Meeting is to elect CAS Trustees and
also members of the various Standing Committees of the Association.
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To ensure stability and continuity of the CAS Board, Trustees including Honorary
Officers are elected for 3 years renewable once, so the maximum term allowable
is 6 years.

In the case of a vacancy arising on the CAS Board between one Annual General
Meeting and the next, depending on the category of Trustee vacancy that arises,
then an appropriate process to recruit a co-opted Trustee is undertaken. If the
vacancy is for an External Trustee then an external agency may be used for the
recruitment exercise, For a Bureau Trustee vacancy an internal recruitment
process is undertaken whereby the vacancy is advertised on the CAS website, For
both categories of Trustees, the Nominations Committee selection and interview
process previously described will apply.

Any newly elected Trustees undertake an Induction Programme which includes
meeting with the CAS executive for an overview of the organisation and meeting
relevant CAS Teams.

Trustees are also provided with an Induction Pack which includes organisational
documentation, e.g. Annual Accounts, Strategic Plan and previous CAS Board
Minutes. To ensure the Board are kept up to date on latest developments and to
consider strategic matters, Board awaydays can also be scheduled.

Trustees do not receive remuneration, although they are entitled to claim
reimbursement of reasonable travel expenses incurred in attending Board and
Committee meetings.

Trustees’ responsibilities in relation to the financial statements

The charity Trustees (who are also the directors of the Scottish Association of
Citizens Advice Bureaux for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing a Trustees’ annual report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles).

Company law requires the charity Trustees to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources,
including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the charity will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and to

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23
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enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity
and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

ing Ris}

CAS and the charity sector in general continue to be challenged by a wide range of
important risks; including reduced funding, increased competition, brand
protection, cyber-crime and fraud, as well as issues around transformation of
services. The nature both of our organisation and our strategy means that we face
a number of inherent risks and uncertainties.

The Board has considered carefully the type and extent of the principal risks to the
organisation achieving its strategic objectives and delivering appropriate outcomes
for citizens, members and stakeholders. A number of these are summarised below,

categorised both according to the strategic objective and the nature of the risk,
We have focused our strategic risks on our data, our quality of service, our
relationships and our internal governance and operational structures to ensure a

joined-up approach to the mitigation strategies we undertake.

Risk Strategic Strategic Risk Mitigation
Category Priority
Data Brand Any risk to the e Cyber security
security and accreditation
Service accuracy of our data + External Data
Delivery will undermine the Protection
integrity of our expertise
Advocacy brand, the « Creation of new
and confidence of our data governance
Influence clients and funders unit to support
and the success of good practice
our advocacy. e Updating
membership

standards across
all aspects of data
processes across
the network
including a new
data protection
standard

Training and
support to
managers across
the network
Launch of Civtech
7 project looking

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23
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Risk
Category

Strategic
Priority

Strategic Risk

Mitigation

at data capture

Data cont;

Advocacy
and
Influence

Brand

The evolving advocacy
landscape diminishes the
role of locally derived real-
life data in providing a
voice for citizens locally
and nationally in Scotland
reducing our ability to
advocate effectively and
leading to sub-optimal
decisions.

s Effective
partnership
working in the
new consumer
landscape to
ensure all bodies
recognize and
respect each
other’s roles and
work effectively
together to add
value

s Focus on our
unique service
offering as the
voice of citizens in
local communities
across Scotland.

= Continued
investment in our
data hub and
associated
resources to
ensure live time
local data on
issues that matter
is available to
policy makers

Quality

Brand

Service
Delivery

Demand for advice
and speed of
change
detrimentally impact
on ability of service
to meet client’s
requirements and
tarnish the brand.

e Delivery of new
channel options
and triage to
ensure those most
in need to advice
reach advisers
quickly

s Useof Al to
improve advice
journey for those
able to self-help
including
development of

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23
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Risk
Category

Strategic
Priority

Strategic Risk

Mitigation

botchat and
Civtech 8
vulnerable
consumer
prioritization
processes

« Development of
volunteering
strategy and
investment in
technology to
support volunteers
through CivTech 7
in order to attract
diverse volunteers
into the service

« Regularly audit
processes
membership
conditions to
ensure they are
appropriate

Relationship
Management

Funding
and
Income

Service
Delivery

Brand

Poor relationship
management leads
to a reduction in the
value of the brand,
a shrinkage in the
footprint of the
network and issues
with regard to the
sustainability of
network funding

= [Focus on
strong
relationships
with sponsor
departments
and across
government,
public and
private sector
in key areas

« Work effectively
with partners to
deliver outcomes
across Scotland and
in local
communities

«  Work with local
authorities in areas
where there are no
physical CABs and
with CAB identified
as being most at
risk of low funding

« Creation of new
business
development unit to
scope new funding
opportunities and

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23
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Risk
Category

Strategic
Priority

Strategic Risk

Mitigation

service
development
opportunities for
the network

¢ Lead and deliver
effective financial
planning over the
next 3 years at a
network level.

People

Brand

Service
Delivery

Our new approach
to work in a post
Covid world fails to
attract and retain
the right people
with the right skills
or protect our
people and clients.

s Implementation of
the People
Strategy and
associated delivery
framework across
the organization

« Investment in
leadership training
across the network
to empower
people to do their
roles effectively

« Introduction of
improved appraisal
process linked to
strategic priorities
to create a more
formalized link
between roles and
outcomes
achieved.

« Development of
the of hybrid
working
arrangements to
allow for improved
work/life balance

At the same time, CAS recognises that adopting an overly risk adverse approach may stifle the
organisation’s ability to identify and benefit from new opportunities to support citizens. Every
action involves a degree of risk and it is the role of the executive and trustees to meet the
challenges of those risks and manage them appropriately in a way that delivers optimum
outcomes for our beneficiaries. Set out below is the approach to management of risk within the

organisation.

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23
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How we manage risk

We continue to evolve our approach risk management within CAS. In the last year we
have rolled out our new technological processes across the organisation to enhance and
build on the disciplined approach to risk management embedded last year. This approach
ensures all staff upload operational risks across the organisation onto Pentana which
supports an efficient recording and updating of risk records and provides more powerful
reporting for management and governance to support better oversight. We have also
created a number of new roles in the organization with responsibility for oversight of the
risk processes and supporting staff to embed this into their daily role. These new posts
also support the provision of appropriate risk information to management and trustees to
allow them to take appropriate risk assessed decisions for the organization.

Internally the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) continue to have responsibility for
maintaining an effective risk and control environment as part of day-to-day operations under
the direction of the Chief Executive and the Executive Team. The ELT reviews the Risk
Register on a regular basis and consider the robustness and effectiveness of processes and
contrals to ensure compliance with the Board’s appetite for risk, policies and delegated
authority levels. The Risk Register includes specific measures taken to mitigate the effect
of identified risks. Oversight of Risk takes place at a governance level at the Risk, Audit
and Finance (RAF) Committee meetings while individual risks are also assigned to the
appropriate governance Committee in CAS to manage and report on to the Committee.
Overall responsibility for risk remains with the CAS Board who review the risk register at
each meeting. In addition a rolling programme of risk ‘deep dive’s is built into the Board
forward plan to allow in depth discussions of individual risks selected by the Board at
meetings.

Key Management Personnel

Remuneration of all staff at CAS, including the ELT and Senior Leadership Team
(SLT) is managed under the CAS pay framework in accordance with the CAS
Reward Policy. All posts have a set salary range, and an individual’s starting
remuneration level within the salary range for their post is determined according
to skills and experience. Annual salary increases are agreed through a collective
bargaining process with the union and normally take the form of standard %
uplift to all salaries.

Going Concern

The future operations of the charity remains dependent on the continued
financial support of the core funding bodies. The grant agreement is in
place for 23/24 with funding confirmed. The agreement also provides
indicative funding at the same level for 24/25 with the caveat that these
have been provided only to help us with our future business planning and
that these amounts cannot be confirmed until the beginning of those
financial years.

Against this background, the Trustees have been presented with and approved

up to date management accounts, budgets and cash flow projections which
include key income and cost assumptions including ongoing support from
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funding bodies that the Trustees consider reasonable and prudent.

Having considered the above matters, the Trustees are of the view that, at the date of
approval of the financial statements, the charity will have sufficient resources to continue
to operate and meet debts as they fall due for the foreseeable future. The financial
statements have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.

Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

Each person who is a Trustee of the Board at the date of approval of this report
confirms that:

e So far as the Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which CAS’s auditors are unaware; and

s Each Trustee has taken all the steps he/she ought to have taken as a
Trustee to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that CAS’s auditors are aware of that
information.

By order of the Board of Trustees

Aj’#ﬁ ’ /Z@M 25 August 2023

Rory Mair Date
Chair
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THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A ragistered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC0B9892

Independent Auditors Report to the Members and Trustees

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Scottish Association of Citizens
Advice Bureaux for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the Statement
of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including, Financial
Reporting Standard 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the charitable company’s state of affairs as at
31 March 2023 and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulation 8 of the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Cilizens Advice Scotland Annual Aceounts 2022/23
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Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report which includes
the Director’s Report and the Strategic Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

+ the Trustees” Annual Report which includes the Director’s Report and
the Strategic Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable
company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report and
Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which
the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006
(as amended) require us to report to you if, in our opinion:
e proper and adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited
by us; or
+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
» certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set out on
page 16, the trustees (who are also directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing
the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditors under the Charities and Trustee Investment
(Scotland) Act 2005 and report in accordance with regulations made under that
Act.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above,
to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud are detailed below.

Identifying and assessing risks related to irregularities:

We assessed the susceptibility of the charitable company’s financial statements to
material misstatement and how fraud might occur, including through discussions
with the trustees, discussions within our audit team planning meeting, updating
our record of internal controls and ensuring these controls operated as intended.
We evaluated possible incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements. We identified laws and regulations that are of
significance in the context of the charitable company by discussions with trustees
and updating our understanding of the sector in which the charitable company
operates.

Laws and regulations of direct significance in the context of the charitable
company include The Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee
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Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
2006 (as amended) and guidance issued by the Office of the Scottish Charity
Regulator.

Audit response to risks identified:

We considered the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our
audit procedures on the related financial statement items including a review of financial
statement disclosures. We reviewed the charitable company’s records of breaches of laws
and regulations, minutes of meetings and correspondence with relevant authorities to
identify potential material misstatements arising. We discussed the charitable company’s
policies and procedures for compliance with laws and regulations with members of
management responsible for compliance.

During the planning meeting with the audit team, the engagement partner drew
attention to the key areas which might involve non-compliance with laws and
regulations or fraud. We enquired of management whether they were aware of
any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud. We addressed the risk of fraud through
management override of controls by testing the appropriateness of journal entries
and identifying any significant transactions that were unusual or outside the
normal course of business. We assessed whether judgements made in making
accounting estimates gave rise to a possible indication of management bias. At
the completion stage of the audit, the engagement partner’s review included
ensuring that the team had approached their work with appropriate professional
scepticism and thus the capacity to identify non- compliance with laws and
regulations and fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities faor the audit of the financial statements
is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:

wwwi, fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, and to the
charitable company’s trustees, as a body, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company’s members and
trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company, the
charitable company’s members and trustees as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Lo b —

Kenneth McDowell (Senior 1 September 2023
Statutory Auditor) for and on
behalf of Saffery Champness

Chartered Accountants Edinburgh Quay
133 Fountainbridge Edinburgh

EH3 9BA

Statutory Auditors Date:

Saffery Champness is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212
of the Companies Act 2006
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2023

Fixed Assets
Intangible Assets
Tangible Assets
Investments

Total Fixed Assets

Current Assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Provision for Liabilities

Total net assets

The funds of the charity:
Unrastricted funds

Restricted Funds

These financial statements were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on

25 August .,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

e

L

Rory Mair
Chair
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2023

£
209,399
581,059
1

790,459

1,694,027
5,938,437

7,632,464

(3,128,242)

4,504,222

5,294,681

(32,355)

5,262,326

4,960,241

302,085

5,262,326

2022

£
289,118
251,975
1

541,094

963,112

3,900,950

4,864,062

(1,261,479)

3,602,583

4,143,677

(50,751)

4,092,926

3,489,545

603,381

4,092,926
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THE SCOTTISH ASSQCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes 2023 2022
£ £

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 19 2,836,525 (255,841)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash inflow from interest received 9,032 446
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets » o
Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets (114,082) (86,479)
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (593,344) -
Net cash used in investing activities (698,394) (86,033)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments on Finance Lease 22 (100,644) (134,148)
Net Drawdown an Finance Lease £ 7
Increase / (Decrease) in cash 2,037,487 (476,022)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to
movement in net funds £ £
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2022 3,900,950 4,376,972
Increase / (Decrease) in cash in the year 2,037,487 (476,022)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2023 5,938,437 3,900,950
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THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS For the year ended March 2023

1. Accounting policies

The Scottish Association of Citizens Advice Bureaux is a company limited by
guarantee and a registered charity. It is governed by its Memorandum and
Articles of Association. The principal accounting policies adopted, judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty in the preparation of the financial
statements are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1
January 2019) — (Charities SORP (FRS 102), the financial reporting standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Companies Act
2006 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006.

The accounts are prepared in £ sterling.

Citizens Advice Scotland meets the definition of a public benefit entity under
FRS 102. Assets and liabilities are initially recognised at historical cost or
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy
note(s).

The accounts do not include the consolidation of the charity’s subsidiary, Citizens Advice
Scotland (Trading) Limited which is dormant and immaterial in respect of

the results and net assets of The Scottish Association of Citizens Advice Bureaux.

These accounts are those of The Scottish Association of Citizens Advice Bureaux

and not its group.

Going concern

The future operations of the charity remains dependent on the continued
financial support of the core funding bodies. The grant agreement is in
place for 23/24 with funding confirmed. The agreement also provides
indicative funding at the same level for 24/25 with the caveat that these
have been provided only to help us with our future business planning and
that these amounts cannot be confirmed until the beginning of those
financial years.

Against this background, the Trustees have been presented with and approved
up to date management accounts, budgets and cash flow projections which
include key income and cost assumptions including ongoing support from
funding bodies that the Trustees consider reasonable and prudent.

Having considered the above matters, the Trustees are of the view that, at the date of
approval of the financial statements, the charity will have sufficient resources to
continue to operate and meet debts as they fall due for the foreseeable future. The
financial
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NOTES TO THE AGCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

statements have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.
Incoming resources

Voluntary income includes donations and grants that provide core funding or
that are of a general nature. Income is recognized where there is legal
entitlement to that income, receipt is probable, and the amount can be
quantified with reasonable accuracy. If any grant has been provided for a stated
purpose it is treated as a restricted reserve.

Income from charitable activities includes membership fees and the sale of
information products to Bureaux and is recognised as earned (as the related
goods and services are provided). Income from charitable activities includes
rental income which is included in the year in which it is receivable.

Government grants

Government Grants are paid directly to the organisation to meet ongoing
expenditure and are recognised in the financial period the ongoing expenditure
relates to.

Deferred income

Deferred income is included in the balance sheet where related expenditure
can only take place in a future accounting period.

Resources expended

Expenditure is recognised when a liability is incurred. Expenditure incurred under

contractual arrangements is recognised once the supplier of the goods or services
has performed their part of the contract for example the delivery of goods or the

provision of services,

Development Grants are made to support individual Bureaux. Grants are awarded
on successful completion of a rigorous application and committee review process.
Payments are provided to Bureaux for each individual project based on a tailored
financial plan to fit the project critical path. Grant payments are recognised and
paid upon acceptance by a Bureau of the offer of a grant and in accordance with
a tailored financial plan.

Expenditure has been classified with reference to the activities performed during
the year as follows:

« The costs of generating funds are those costs incurred in attracting
voluntary income.

e Charitable activities include expenditure associated with providing
services and grants to Bureaux, the cost of quality and social policy
activities and the costs of sales to non-member organisations. Costs
include both direct costs and support costs.

« Governance costs include those incurred in the governance of the
charity and its assets and are primarily associated with constitutional
and statutory requirements.

o Support costs include the cost of central functions which support the
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Network and have been allocated to activity cost categories on a basis
consistent with the use of resources such as staff costs.

Fund accounting

Funds held by the Association are either:

« Unrestricted general funds — these are funds which can be used in
accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the
Trustees,

« Unrestricted Designated funds — these are funds set aside by the
Trustees out of unrestricted general funds for specific future
purposes or projects.

¢ Restricted funds - these funds arise when money is granted to
CAS for a particular purpose or project. Such reserves can only be
used for the purpose specified by the donor.

Tangible Fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are included at historical cost. Assets costing less than
£10,000 are not capitalised. Additions to Fixed Assets include the cost of
irrecoverable VAT, Depreciation is allocated at rates calculated to write off the
cost of each asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows:

Furniture and equipment 10-33.3% straight line basis
Intangible Fixed Assets other than Goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Intangible assets comprise software and the Castle computer
system replacement. The assets are defined as having finite useful lives of
between 3 and 5 years.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less
their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Software 33.3%
Castle software 20%

Castle is the case recording system used by Bureaux and has been significantly
redesigned from the previous version which had been operational for over 10
years, Therefore it is deemed appropriate to amortise this asset over 5 years.
Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial
Activities over the lease term on a straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of
any lease incentives is recognised as a reduction in rental expense and allocated
over the lease term.

Pensions
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Two pension schemes were in operation during the period.

The first scheme is with The Pensions Trust and is a multi-employer defined
benefit scheme administered independently of the Association. It is not possible
to identify on a consistent basis the share of underlying assets and liabilities
belonging to individual participating employers.

Under FRS 102 the liability in respect of the funding shortfall has been recognised
in the accounts and the ongeing charge in the Statement of Financial Activities
and the Income and Expenditure Account relates to the contributions payable and
any unwinding of the discount rates used in calculating the present value. The
disclosure under FRS 102 is shown in note 22.

The second scheme with Standard Life operates as a defined contribution scheme.

The assets of this scheme are also administered independently of the Association.
Pension costs charged in the Statement of Financial Activities and the Income and
Expenditure Account under this scheme also represent the employer contributions
payable.

VAT
The charity is partially exempt and cannot recover all VAT incurred.

The cost of non-recoverable Value Added Tax is expensed in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Financial instruments

The Charity has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial
Instruments' and Section 12 'Other Finance Instruments Issues' of FRS 102, in
full, to all of its financial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the charity becomes
a party to the contractual provision of the instrument, and are offset only when
the charity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets
A financial asset represents financial resources available to the charity and
examples include financial investments in shares or bonds, debtors and cash.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors which are receivable within one year are initially
measured at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, being the transaction price less any amounts settled and any
impairment losses.

A provision for impairment of trade and other debtors is established when there is
objective evidence that the amounts due will not be collected according to the

original terms of the contract. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities for the excess of the carrying value of the trade debtor over
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the present value of the future cash flows discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Subsequent reversals of any impairment loss that objectively relate
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid. Accrued income is measured at
the amount recoverable.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a financial claim on the charity's resources and examples
include loans, creditors and legal or constructive obligations, including provisions
for grants payable.

Creditors

Trade and other creditors payable within one year are initially measured at the
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the
transaction price less any amounts settled.

Investments

CAS has a £1 investment in Citizens Advice Scotland (Trading) Limited which is
dormant and not consolidated.

Significant judgements and estimates

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant
judgements and estimates. The only significant area in the financial statements
where these judgements and estimates have been made is:

« Recharges to restricted funds — The methodology for the calculation of
recharges is predominantly based on a headcount full time equivalent
allocation and has been agreed with funders prior to budgets being
approved and funding being made available.
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Incoming resources from donations & legacies 2023 2022
£ ¥

Unrestricted funds

BEIS Grant in Aid 3,637,000 3,241,000

Digital Boost grant - 5,450

Legacies 21,306 11,341

Donations 625,000 -

4,283,306 3,257,791

Restricted Funds

Scottish Government 7,803,551 8,084,787
HM Treasury (DWP - Pensionwise, Help To Claim) 3,984,157 5,807,465
BEIS 2,925,900 2,347,100
Poppyscotland 479,704 511,947
Scottish Water " 268,267
Gamble Aware 538,273 199,985
The University of Edinburgh 29,260 =
Meney Advice Scotland 215 2,795
Water Industry Commission for Scotland - 7,549
Energy Consumers Commission - 10,990
Energy Companies
EDF Energy Customers Limited 500,000 -
E.ON Energy Solutions 435,404 .
OVO Energy Ltd 125,000 206,550
Scottish & Southern Energy 240,813 177,038
Scottish Power - 170,000
Scottish Gas Networks PLC 686,140 -

17,748,417 17,794,473

Total 22,031,723 21,052,264

The Help To Claim contract was run through CiTA in 22/23, in previous years the funding was
direct from HM Treasury.

Incoming resources from charitable activities 2023 2022
£ £

Unrestricted funds

Bureaux membership subscriptions 104,395 108,591
Accountancy in Bankruptcy Payments (Designated) 154,035 107,372
Other income 2,475 7,029
260,905 222,992

Restricted funds
Other Income 76,868 132,352
76,868 132,352
Total 337,773 355,344

The Restricted Other income primarily relates to the NatWest Debt project funded by CiTA
and the Spina Bifida project funded by that charity. Both are vatable deliveries.
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Charitable actlvities
Staff Grants Other Suppert Restricted Total Total
Costs  to Burpaux costs costs Recharges 2023 2022
£ £ i £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
Services to member bureaux
Pravision of Infarmation system 232,308 . 106,457 259,335 (310,311) 287,789 230,580
Tralning & Quality 405,040 - 41,686 374,505 (448,226) 373,095 325,194
Informatian technalogy and communication 538,731 . 244,936 489,856 (586,142) 687,381 863,336
Diract field services 277,154 . 34,491 201,705 (241,353) 171,997 290,145
Development Cammittée grants - 344,881 - - - 144,881 355,572
1,453,233 344,831 427,570 1,325,491 (1,586,032) 1,965,143 2,064,827
Sacial policy and public affairs 250,116 47,250 64,605 144,075 - 506,046 400,423
1,703,349 393,131 492,175 1,469,566 11;535.031) 2,471,189 2,465,250
Deslgnated
Accountant in Bankruptcy DAS payments . 60,885 . - . 60,885 74,608
Ayrshire CABS Development . . . - - - 674
Castle Computer Replacement Project . v - - . . 3,397
Capacity Building . = - - =
Designated fived asset & intangible asset fund * L 421,160 B = 421,160 457,880
Digital Advice Project . . . = * = 6RB,562
Penslon Fund - - - = - - -
Pragramme Management (68,352) 8,090 4,463 - - (55,799)  (161,265)
Property Fund - - 36,711 = . 36,711 -
Small Grants Fund . 58,898 . - . 58,898 23,393
*Tachnology Infrastructure Fund (formerly Shared
Services Restricted - transferred from Restricted
in21/22) = 1,046 105,758 = - iﬂ'."IBM !1&5@51}
(G68,352) 129,919 568,002 = - 629,659 401,508
Total Unrestrigted 1,634 597 !EIID!D 15060526? 1‘ﬂ69‘566 IEEDS]} 3,100,848 2,766,848

* The Shared Services Fund had been set up In prior years with external funding and as such had been treated as a Restricted Fund, Over the years
that initial funding has been used up and as such it is now appropriate to treat as a Designated Fund, The primary use is to support the ongoing
devalopment of the infrastructure for the natwork and the name has been updated to reflect that.

Support costs

2023 202z
Unrestrictad Support Costs are analysed as follows: £ £
Staff Costs 829,426 477,575
Pramises Costs 408,122 419 480
Admin/Office Costs 46,007 48,210
Finance & Professional 185,021 176,536
Strategic Spend 800 750

1,469,566 1,122,551
Core Support costs are allocated an the basis of staffing costs within the restricted funded activities,
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Cost of charitable activities (continued)

Staff Grants Other Restricted Total Tatal
Costs to Bureaux costs Recharges 2023 2022
E £ £ £ £ [
Restricted
Armed Services Advice and Aged Vaterans 32,424 423,571 10,889 10,055 476,939 511,613
Big Energy Savings Network BESN® 14,520 221,689 65,524 17,222 318,955 63,712
Big Energy Savings Week - 29,400 30,575 . 59,975 60,000
Can Da ScatEnt project - - 76,810 - 76,810 224,785
Channel Extra . - : - - 53,006
CivTech Challenge - - 215,958 - 215,958 71,749
CivTech 7.11 Improving Castle Data - . 83,000 - 3,000 -
Debt Advice - Natwest - - 44,660 609 45,269 55,750
Edinburgh University Interns 29,260 . - - 29,260 -
Energy Best Deal 55,905 911,851 33,799 62,356 1,063,911 742,497
Energy Consumers Commisslon - - . - = 10,990
EU Readiness % = " B . 182,353
EU Settlement Home Office Funding . = 9,660 - 9,660 67,276
EU Settlement 5G Funding 30,560 96,198 48,740 11,610 187,108 362,073
Extra Help Unit 1,950,655 E 380,972 775,929 3,117,596 2,536,936
Gamble Awarenass 80,042 381,931 17,296 34,798 514,067 213,065
General Consumer Advocacy (Rest of Economy) 727,856 54,700 163,958 154,178 1,100,692 950,000
Help To Claim (formerly Universal Credit) 473,767 1,348,860 137,269 197,980 2,157,876 3,935,584
lust Giving Otto Thoresen - - 897 - 897 216
LEAP Praject - . x " h 3,220
Levy Funded Consumer Advocacy 56,276 - 8,903 65,179 636,397
Lloyd Debt Support - 12,350 = 12,350 .
Money Advice (MATRICS) 111,622 . 309,619 36,613 457,854 460,155
Meney Talks (farmerly Financial Health Check) 123,516 2,408,290 41,135 79,558 2,652,499 1,528,430
Patient Advice and Support Service 38,572 758,212 27,447 11,415 835,646 806,181
Pension Wise/Guidance 258,128 1,413,942 51,867 99,371 1,823,308 1,823,618
Safe and Warm Advisory Service 72,416 521,479 38,118 38,313 670,326 9,310
Scam Awareness - . . - - 95,860
Scottish Cltlzens Advice Helpline (SCAH) - . - & - 318,976
5G Energy Advice 916 370,081 4,162 12,257 387,416 .
Shopping Card Pilot 7.331 11,228 - 2,273 20,832 85,337
SPARK Energy & EON - . . - - 9,935
Specialist Debt Advice 5G Support 14,627 605,000 1,152 4,221 625,000 1,250,002
Specialist Dabt Helpline - JP Morgan (5G Funded 2 5,880 64,124 13,256 2,841 86,101 342,006
SpinaBifida praject - - 6,944 - 6,044 -
SSEN Energy Advisors 10,700 248,120 B,966 11,566 279,352 166,247
Water Industry Commission project - - - - - 7,549
Walfare Reform 35,246 678,186 104 13,964 727,500 1,480,745
Tatal Restricted 4,130,259 10,546,862 1,845,127 1,586,032 18,108,280 19,070,573
Unrestricted 1,634,997 522,050 2,529,833 (1,586,032} 3,100,848 2,766,848
Total Charitable Activities 5,765,256 11,068,912 4,374,960 - 21I209 128 21@3 7,621

*Funded by UK Government -Department for Business and Trade and Scottish Goavernment
Note 5 - Page 41
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Charitable activities - continued

For prior year ended 31 March 2022 Staff Grants Other Support  Restricted Total Total
Costs  to Bureaux costs costs  Recharges 2022 2021
E £ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
Services to member bureaux
Pravision of infarmation system 127,753 . 118,188 133,637 (148,998} 230,580 236,497
Training & Quality 306,763 . 49,153 267,274 (297,996) 325194 437314
Information technology and eammunieation 503,713 - 405,706 400,911 (446,994) 863,326 713,843
Direct field services 267,933 - 49,862 240,547 (268,197) 290,145 254,539
Development Committee grants - 355,572 - - - 355,572 449,812
1,206,162 355,572 622,909 1,042365 (1,162,185} 2,064,827 2,092,005
Soclal policy and public affairs 183,518 46,900 119,826 80,182 . 400,423 467,778
1”_35‘9,677 402,472 742,715 1,122,551  (1,162,185) 2465250 2,559,783
Designated
Accountant In Bankruptcy DAS Payments - 74,608 - - - 74,608 =
Ayrshire CABS developmant . - 674 - - 674 7,565
Castle Replacement . . 3,397 - - 3,397 {33,309)
Debt Advice Pilat = . = - -
Designated fixed asset & intangible asset fund - - 457,880 - . 457,880 486,814
Digital Advice Project - . 68,562 - . 68,562 12,572
Programme Management (158,214) - - (3,051) (161,265)  (35373)
Praperty Fund . . . - & - -
Small Grants Fund - 23,393 . . - 23,393 26,707

Technology Infrastructure Fund (formerly Shared

Services Restricted*) - - [165,651) & 2 {165,651) 73,209
(158,214) 98,001 364,862 - (3,051) 301,598 538,185
Total Unrestricted 1201463 500473 1,107,897 1,122551 (1,165236) 2,766,848 3,097,068

* The Shared Services Fund had been set up in prior years with external funding and as such had been treated as a Restricted Fund. Over

Support costs

2022 2021
Unrestricted Support Costs are analysed as follows: £ i
Staff Costs 471,575 719,969
Premises Costs 418,480 372,647
Admin/Office Costs 48,210 39,499
Finance & Professional 176,536 190,438
Strategic Spend 750 750

1,122,551 1,323,303

Core Support costs are allocated on the basis of staffing eosts within the restricted funded activities,
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Cost of charitable activities {continued)

Fer prior year ended 31 March 2022 Staff Grants Other Restricted Total Total
Costs  to Bureaux costs Recharges 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted
A Dispute Resolution - . - - - 20,000
Admin Help - - - - - 40,701
Armed Services Advice and Aged Veterans 30,712 457,430 11,793 11,678 511,613 606,896
Big Energy Savings Network BESN - 42,376 13,336 8,000 63,712 90,325
Big Energy Savings Week - 21,100 38,900 . 60,000 59,622
CanDao Scottish Enterprisa - - 224,785 - 224,785 .
Channel Extra 7,511 17,175 27,529 791 53,006 83,579
CivTech Challenge - - 71,749 - 71,748 -
Consumer Futures Transition . i . . - 7,730
Covid DBEIS Support - - - - - 1,266,650
Covid 5G Support . . 2 : : 1,018,315
Debt Advice - Natwest - - 55,000 750 55,750 11,150
Development of Debt Advisor Programme - B - - - 154,380
Energy Best Deal 49,535 662,198 15,408 15,356 742,497 651,172
Energy Consumers Commission - - 10,990 . 10,990 -
EU Readiness 92,727 - 58,293 31,333 182,353 337,491
EU Settlement HO Funding 16,184 31,800 25442 - 6,150 67,276 356,100
EU Settlement 5G Funding 59,315 219,972 52,811 28,975 362,073 339,488
Eviction Rights Campaign - - - - - 44,094
Extra Help Unit 1,544,699 - 421,322 570,915 2,536,936 2,102,701
Gamble Aware 87,121 120,483 288 5,173 213,085 183,130
General Consumer Advocacy 564,739 73,350 221,878 50,033 950,000 943,183
Help To Claim (fermerly Universal Credit) 446,196 3,175,503 181,686 132,199 3,935,584 4,053,181
Just Giving Otte Tharesen - - 216 . 216 216
Kinship Care - - - - - 104,018
LEAP Project 3,220 . . - 3,220 .
Levy Funded Advocacy 512,828 - 56,805 66,763 636,397 700,938
Martin Lewis . r . - B771
Matrics Extra - - - . - 30,476
Money Advice (MATRICS) 105,761 - 319,647 34,747 460,155 113,680
Monay Advice Trust - - - - - 6,250
Meney Maximisation campaign - - - - - 139,167
Money Talks (formerly Financial Health Check) 93,791 1,325,104 79,589 29,946 1,528,430 1,368,501
Open Government Booklet - - - - - 6,000
Patient Advice and Support Service 43,855 728,038 18,999 15,285 806,181 796,080
Penslonwise 263,660 1,440,586 53,261 66,111 1,823,618 1,780,160
Post Xmas debt advice - : . . - 249,999
Safe and Warm Advisory Servica 5,503 - 952 2,855 9,310 B
Scam Awareness 9,814 82,269 734 3,043 95,860 83,857
Scottish Citizens Advice Helpline [SCAH) 45,805 258,972 - 14,199 318,976 258,741
Sharing Best Practice MultiChannel Debt Advice - - - - - 82,783
Shopping Card Filot - 85,337 - - 85,337 B
SPARK Energy & EON 9,935 - - . 5,935 -
Specialist Debt Advice 5G Support 40,242 1,189,285 8,000 12,475 1,250,002 .
Specialist Debt Helpline - JP Morgan 6,706 320,521 15,128 4,651 347,006 1,805
S5E Energy Advisors 4,664 154,771 4,758 2,054 166,247 105,015
Stats HUB - B = . . 14,575
Water Industry Commission project 5,708 - - 1,841 7,549 294
Waelfare Reform 77,417 1,376,000 6,119 21,209 1,480,745 1,478,536
Total Restricted 4,127,649 11,782,270 1,995418 1,165,236 19,070,573 15,700,840
Unrestricted 1,201,463 500,473 2,230,148 (1,165,236) 2,766,848 3,097,968
Total Charitable Activities 5,329,112 12,282,743 4,235 566 - 21,837,421 22,798 BDB

Note 5 - Page 41
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2023 2022
Grants to Burgaux E £
Aberdaen CAB 205,625 311,563
Alrdrie CAB 469,828 464,234
Angus CAB 105,896 135,852
Argyle & Bute CAB 195,438 189,266
Banf{ & Buchan CAB 80,051 89,819
Bellshill CAB 60,088 70,883
CAB West Lothian 528,084 501,976
Caithness CAB 116,043 115,101
CARF 406,706 508,304
Central Borders CAB 68,377 74,325
Citlzens Advice Edinburgh 423,420 588,058
Clackmannan CAB 319,109 383,274
Clydesdale CAB 105,418 100,275
Coatbridge CAB 119,041 127,323
Cumbernauld CAB 77,639 89,593
DAGCAS 391,922 518,778
Dalkeith & District CAB 93,568 117,758
Denny & Dunipace CAB 80,039 82,896
Dundee CAB 476,907 507,815
East Ayrshire CAB 396,405 360,185
East Dunbartanshire CAB 230,386 255,076
East Kilbride CAB 128,379 120,601
East Renfrewshire CAB 163,093 253,029
East Sutherland CAB 39,177 62,137
Falkirk CAB 162,580 202,621
Glasgow Bridgaton CAB 111,185 133,953
Glasgow Castlemilk CAB B8,594 101,017
Glasgow Central CAB 151,291 163,138
Glasgow Drumehapel CAB 157,655 252,323
Glasgow Easterhouse CAB 123,038 155,102
Glasgow Greater Pollok CAB 83,963 160,426
Glasgow Maryhill CAB 231,055 293,123
Glasgow Parkhead CAB 165,228 182,900
Grangemouth CAB 98,265 111,830
Haddington CAB 128,388 185,708
Hamilton CAB 117,297 112,586
Inverness CAB 853,523 744,118
Kincardine & Mearns CAB 94,594 125,913
Lochaber CAB 57,886 80,966
Maoray CAR 118,739 110,469
Matherwall & Wishaw CAB 589,961 566,357
Musselburgh CAB 44,146 75,767
Malrn CAB 154,470 212,988
North West Sutherland CAB 34,063 29,269
Orkney CAB 53,865 59,669
Feables CAB 78,210 93,310
Peniculk CAB 65,818 92,709
Ferth CAB 342,675 220,521
Renfrewshire CAB 260,535 300,438
Ross & Cromarty CAB 152,022 158,636
Roxburgh CAB 108,153 135,474
Rutherglen CAB 102,412 97,785
Shetland Islands CAB 107,887 118,969
Skys & Lochalsh CAB 79,701 84,798
Stirling CAB 236,562 234,508
Turriff & District CAB 64,067 86,135
Waest Dunbartonshire CAB 167,521 182,470
Western Isles CAB 184,022 183,648
Wasthill & District CAB 214,302 204,978
Note 4 Note 4
Page 38 11 053‘912 Page 40 12;282i7d3
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Net Income/|expenditure) for the year before transfers 2023 2022

This is stated after charging:

Irrecoverable VAT 408,332 346,305
Depreciation 458,061 522,829
Auditors' remuneration

External audit 24,919 20,380

Bureau Audit = 2,464

VAT Audit 3,101 4,199

28,020 27,043

Operating lease rentals 277,104 282,477
Staff costs 2023 2022
£ £

Wages and salaries 5,479,518 4,951,099

Social security costs 546,284 477,843

Other pensions costs 546,580 361,745

Temporary staff costs/Placement Fees 12,300 16,000

6,584,682 5,806,687

The average monthly number of employees during the year: 2023 2022
Number Number

Number of staff 186 173
2023 2022
Number Number

Employees' emoluments (excluding employer's pension contributions)
falling within the band:

£60,000 - £70,000 A 2
£70,000 - £80,000 2 1
£80,000 - £90,000 1 -

The increase in salary costs over the period relate primarily to an increase in staff numbers in EHU which saw a
significant increase in demand. We have also invested in additional resource for data and business development to
support funding diversification going forward.

Trustees are not remunerated. 4 Trustees (2021/22: 1) received reimbursement of expenses for
attending meetings amounting to £1,207 (2021/22: £75),

The key management personnel comprise the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, the Director of
Impact, the Director of Advice Services, Director of Business Development & National Funded Services,Head of Network
Services,Head of Standards, Head of Finance, Head of Digital Technology, Head of Communications, Head of Extra Help
Unit, Head of Human Resources, Head of Strategy, Governance, Performance & Risk, and three Strategic Leads;Social
Justice, Finance Health and Strong Communities.

The total employee costs (including salary, NIC, and pension costs) of the key management
personnel were £1,002,750 (2021/22 £936,148),

Corporation tax
The Association is a registered charity and is exempt from taxation on income and gains where
they are applied for charitable purposes.
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THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A registered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC089892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Related party transactions

Citizens Advice Scotland (Trading) Limited is a fully owned subsidiary of CAS. During the year to 31 March 2023,
it did not trade,

During 2022/23 there were no fee payments to any Trustee (2021/22: ENIL).

Amounts paid during the year to Bureaux which are connected to Trustees amounted to £2,449,873 (2021/22 £1,892,935)
Amount sutstanding te Bureaux at the year end which are connected to Trustees amounted to £420 (2021/22 £20,969).
All debts have been repaid within normal business terms,

Payments to CAB associated with trustees have increased because full year payments have been included for any CAB associated
with a trustee, even where the trustee only served on the Board for part of the year, Two CAB trustees resigned in 2022 and two
new trustees from CAB were appointed therefare full year payments to all 4 CAB have been included in the accounts for this year.

Grant Outstanding

Bureau £ £
Aberdesn 205,625 -
Glasgow Maryhill 231,055 420
Inverness, Badenech & Strathspey 853,523 -
Orkney 53,B65 "
Parkhead 169,228 -
Penicuik 65,818 -
Perth 142,675 .
West Lothian 528,084 -

2,449,873 420
Fixed assets
Intangibles

Software
Cost £
At 1 April 2022 1,124,454
Additions 114,082
Disposals (28,427)
At 31 March 2023 1,210,109
Amartization
At 1 April 2022 835,336
Charge for year 193,801
Disposals (28,427)
At 31 March 2023 1,000,710
Net book valua
At 31 March 2023 209|399
At 31 March 2022 289,118
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THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A registered Scottish Charity 3C016637 and company limited by guarantee SC089892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Fixed assets

Tangible Fixed Assets
Furniture &
eguipment
Cost £
At 1 April 2022 1,439,942
Additions 593,344
Disposals (418,597)
At 31 March 2023 1,614,689
Depreciation
At 1 April 2022 1,187,967
Charge for year 264,260
Disposals (418,597)
At 31 March 2023 1,033,630
Net book value
At 31 March 2023 581,059
— el i
At 31 March 2022 251,975

All Tangible Fixed Assets are held for charity use by the charitable company.

Investments

Citizens Advice Scotland (Trading) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of CAS but has not been
consolidated as, in the apinion of the Trustees, the figures would be of no value to the members.
As at 31 March 2023 the Company had capital and Reserves of £1 and had not traded during the year.

Debtors 2023 2022
£ £

Trade debtors 903,637 308,012
Prepayments 439,084 227,585
Accrued income 311,457 354,867
Due from bureaux 3,128 33,876
Other debtors 36,721 38,772
1,694,027 963,112
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THE SCO 1 1I5H ASSOCIATIUN UF CHIZENS AUVILE BUREAUA
A registered Scottish Charity SC0168637 and company limiled by guarantee SC089892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 2023 2022
£ £
Trade creditors 456,848 359,324
Sundry creditors and accruals 2,467,004 610,376
Finance Lease - Short Term Liability - 100,644
Other taxes and social security costs 138,219 120,853
Pension 86,171 70,282
3,128,242 1,261,479

Included in sundry ereditors and aceruals above are amounts of deferred income as follows:

Balance at start of year - 235,973
Released in year - (235,973)
Deferred in year 1,348,042 -
Balance at end of year 1,348,042 -

Income has been deferred at the year end as income was received in advance of the time period to which it
relates, as per the terms of the contract.

Provisions for liabilities and charges 2023 2022
£ £
Liability for Pension Past Service Deficit Contributions 32,355 50,751

Refer to Note 21 for a reconciliation of the opening and closing provision of the Pension liability.

Commitments

The Company has the following commitments in respect of total future rentals for land and buildings,
photocopiers and a vehicle, under existing operating leases. The new lease for the Edinburgh office which
started Sept 2022 for 5 years is now included in this years figures.

2023 2022

£ £

Due within one year 251,171 170,897

Due between two and five years 663,738 475485
Due after five years - -

The Development Committee approved and committed grants to Bureaux, of which £NIL were outstanding at
the year-end (2021/22: £NIL); and committed development grants for next year 2023/24 totalling £254,600 (
last years commitment for 2022/23 was £153,005). Further grant commitments of £136,386 were made for
2024/25,

Share capital

The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital.

Citizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23 46



iy

CTTE0T SIUNDODY [ENULY DUBICOS SHADY SU2ZjD)

WRWLRPNGS IFFII005 PUE 3pel) pue ssansng iog Jusuriedag- yuawmusacs i Ag papung,

“SEEzrs  (BIrB0TI BISEIETT 9267607 NIIWIERTZ) E R
THC 096 F (s¥8'00T"E] TOEET VT ESSH 3
“SEUzt  WeCBOTETl  (ioten SETST LT T8E €00 TELS0I06T]  (EALSITl  SCROIGLL  LIGZLEL

- {oos'ezed " DOS'LTL - [s#eoew'T) = LOOOLE'T Srd'oT

& > = = le¥s'] BFSL =
£58'01 [rse'sez) £EE0pT =] [evz'sar) SEOLLT TO9'8E

- [¥ps'al 59 . - 2 -

. [t gel . 0138 (500’ wE) i ooo'as LOT'ERE

2 [ooo‘szal 000'sze - [eoo'ost'th z 000'0sT'T =

- = - = [5£5's] frel - E96'6
TER'ETT [reg'oz) 000'00T €59 [eee'ss) - 0o0'0ET -
PESZE [sTr'eBed o000ty - = - - -

= = = [ae8'BTE) [13: cafi-i] oo0'0or 5509

=] = - = [oee'ssl = = 09n'sE
#0859 (aze'oes) orT'ass [ome's} fone'sh - - -

- - - = - {z) - i
EBT0E (poe'eza’t) TR oLy [era'eza’T) {¥8¥'es) ETbTSE"T B5F'FE
95T LT (ata'ses) SLaTIR Fri O [re1's0s) = SLa'TIg EES'SE

J [66%'T53"2) 005 TSST 4] [oER'BZST) = TER'TLNT LES'SS

] (rse'csw) SBULSH - [ss1'0aT) oiz's SPE'ESY

X fose'zt) 0SERT - - - - -

2 (6r1'ss) BLTES - [LeE"sEs) - ERTEES ¥ST'E

) = = = bozz'el ] - TE2E
el lees) 06LS TSL8T fateh - AUTE T6LET
665'5L face'est'e) QEVSETT BEWTW [res"ses"e) 150558 TERTIT

. lz65'00T"1) 76001 T & f0o0'oss) - 0007055 -
90T'bT lreo'wis] = ELTEES = s90'e1d - 1974 080%ET

- 965" L TT'E) (o as) DOEFIT'E - l9EB"985 2] [rar'ed) 00F0TST 2
L2706 {801 28m) = GE¥'EET 9697 (Een'z5E) - w691 L TAL )

> foeg'e) EONE 52’9 - faLz'es) - TS "

- = = - 2 {Ese‘zET) = = £SE'TRT

- {rts'exa'nl wO'0R0'T LOS'E (= i 055°9LE FS¥EaE

. {osz'st] 0sT'st 2 . 5 - -

. {saz'sy] g 63’5y . foses8) - osL'ss =

T {ooo'es) 000'sL ] . - - - A
SCE'T {ese'sEz) C 05L’t FES'SIT (5re"1el £0TLE 000°00T 000'00T

- - - - {300°e5] - - 500'ES

- forsras) - [42:T) {ssevzel - - S85"10E

- {sc'ss) 5L5'68 - fooores) - ooo'os -

- {sss'erE) DOO'TET 5559 {z1e'es) - 00006 153
'y lees'ale LGl 00T (eTa'TES) - LPE'INS 9T
3 ki 3 3 3 3 ] 3 3
20T Ez/zToT ezfreoz ETfTR0T 0T zzfreoe el zzfreoz TZOT
Gy TE aunijpuadc SaajsuRL)L awazy ypwes TE ainypuadag SERSUR)l Iwou| e TE
souejeg e iE
Sugsoy auered aruejeg

£Z0E Yey papus seak ay) Jod (psnunuod) SINNODIY IHL OL SILON
T6E600S sMuerent Kq papus Auedwoo pue 1E90L00S AuBYD YsHoos pas)site v
WMYIHNE IAOY SNIZILD S0 NOLLYIDOSSY HSILLODS IHL

Fpuny E104

Spung pRoOILGSAILT [EI0L

SpUny PLNSIY 100

WOy SURERNY

wafosd ucessnuwso) AnsTipu) JaRERy
ssosinpy A3Jaul NISS

walosd epypgeunds

{22/t papung 95} welicl Jf - AUNCSRH 1930 1sUERRdS

poddng 95 20py 190 HiEpads

O3 g AZm=u3 HHYdS

0jid pie) Suddoys

anpy Adiaug o5

(HWE] 2undiaH F3EAPY SUSIRI YSIss
SSAUTIRMY WBIS

e ARosINDY LI PUR )RS
FAPR 1P SR 21504
AIEpIND s, WA

(320 yyEaH [eouRay Mawsog) syl Asuow
(s L] acapy Asuoiy
poddng 1530 sphof

foeooagny Jausnstor) papung Aaan
yasloud g

wasaroy 0930 S sy

{upaun pesvanun Apaausag) wiep) of diaH
[Awoucag o 152y AJEICAPY JSLURSLOD [RIDUAD
ssRAREAY QWD

BN ded eng

Buipuny 06 WILSEERES N3

Bepuny 2010 MLOH WALSEES N3
sssupesy N3

|eag 1= Ay

sy Agissamun yEnqupy
ISAMGEN - SHAPY 150

Sunpuecal ase) Bupordwy - 3Susgey) YA
udiaH - aBuajieyy s oy

BIW3 [RULELYD)

wafoud Ju3l005 0g e

sz sBunes ABmu3 B

#M538 jromgay sBuwes B3 Bg
SURIAN, PRBY PUR 32MADY SEIUURE PR

Spumy pELsay

Spung payeudisag g pRAIMSIUN PRSI

384 le BEumtak

EE

z



e ETITEOT SUNCITY [ENULY PUEHOIE 20Dy SUSZNIT

wonidwos peioud axapy [E1SH0 21 J0) NOTEF PR Sy PUB JI0MIBU 24 Joy Aessaoaw pusds jexBip BujcBuo sy joy pung JuswdoEnag Ll 3u 03 PRURESURA SeM BEEST Sy i
JuBSIpnER YHINguUIpS P00 MOU 3L S3R00 01 HOKTT ‘HT0T VI PUR 35831 30150 oSSR AUl J0 PUa UL U 204 pury Asadosy
31 0} SYsueR ¥STEF pUe pund Jassy paxly paneudisag sl YSnoag) 207 PROUROIE 'SJaSse J0 uogesiended auyy o3 Sunes NEEFTF aUaw Stuawsanow Jsadie) 3yl

GBS TELE [655°629) BTISOZET SEOPEE TE6 96F T 1855 10 615656 ZEOTT BELELIT

ErS'a0s'T {voz'rot) BLI'HIE E9Z°06L 159"58T BEI'TOT 056'T DED'OTH ’ (z2/12 u1 PSS WO PIUYSUEN - PRIILNS3Y
530U Paseys Msawusy) punyg aamaniyseyu) ABcouyda)
{202} [e6'ss) - - DES'8S lEsE"ET) 06£'3L - £6TE pung spueID WS
LEB'PEY [r1e'sg) HOERT - FREER - PR ETE = 0BE'6TT pung lu=doig
LEW'TST 66L'55 - - 2E5'96T SATTYT - £LE'SE wauwsgeusyy wwerdoig
DO0'0ST - - - D000FT - 0000FT - - pUng uoisuR g
z [zee'sTel . TTR'STE z9s'as) = - ¥BE'TEE [iumwanejdas
SN0 J 19N Josmpy ApRuog] Ralold 20Mpy (23S0
09%' Tl [osT'TZH) AEF'SLL 5 VET'LBE B’ cswl LT90TT - LBE'WTY puny jasse qiBieelu) g 1asse paoy pateudisag
00T'8E = 00T'8E - - - = - Suipgng Apede)
- - - - (£6E°E) - - LEE'E eiond wauwsepday saindwod apsed
- = [eTa'sT) = L18'%6T {res) - = 6¥'07 uawdaEaag SEYD aaysaby
LTH'BLT [sea'09) = SEO'RST £97'58 [205"md) {ooo’s) TLELOT £0S'LS suawhed gyq Andnopieg uz jUelnoy
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E 3 SPUNY PADUISAL LY PIPNRU| pRIsUisag
ET0T ezfrzon enfreoe gzfrzoe frii-4 zfeoe zftzoe frdjeaitd jrdita
e TE aunjipuady SIASULL] 2oy ey TE aumpusdng suagsuen) AW YEW TE
aduejeqg e e
Husop ajwe|eg aaue|eg

‘panupuoD ‘spuny paieudisag § PARAASAUIUN PRSI

EZOZ Youepy papus reak syl Jod (pSnupuod) SINNODOY IHL OL S310N
ZEE6E00S asjuesend Ag papwy Auedwod pue /£agL00S AUeyD UsHeos pasasibar Y
WTYIUNE IAY SNIZLLD S0 NOLLVIDOSSY HSILLODS SHL

2

EgEF: s



EE/ZE0E SN0y [ENUUNY DUSHCOS SAMDY SUSZNID

Rasanad jesaung Supniu

‘puny AIEI0ARY SSWNSUOY PIPUNG AT Ayl AG PRURA0D 10U SJa11EW AJED0ADY FILELO ||B U0 SIRUUnswod weddns oy dn jas sem pung (Awouoag 10 153y] ADesompy J3IUNSIH0T [eRRuRn
wonNppy Jujgueen Jnoqe SXURISISTY PUT IMADY ISAED 030N 135 SEM PUNY SSIUSUEMY S|QUIED

WSUWALANOD STI00S 31 AG S60T PUE $1380 Aq FRpUng 5006 5| PUE ‘SISeq SJEL3JA0 3PIM N B U0 ‘a0ipe AR1aUR 1noge SR wnsuoD on woddns sass o3 dn jas sem puny Jun disy e

g Bunnp sanuapisas 3UnEas S|EUCTEN N3 50y 30URISISSY PUE 30mpY JBaap o dn 135 sem Fuipung O JUSWRias N3

arg FUUNP SPURPS) SURRES SELOIEN M3 JOj FOURSISSY PUR IMAPY SAMIRP 0F On 135 sem Sumpung 30440 SWOH JURWaIEs N3

ﬁu&thﬁh.? ssaooud 1ocug Ay ySnouy suammn poddns o} Apeded yeowian paseauoul 2psvosd oF dn 1as Sem pury SsIPeIY N3

Sunoy dpog pueposs LT R 1 BORISURAL AL UM TZ/TT0T W Bosd yom e 00 UIER) SISy JEd SN 20y AN 125 SEM PLINg LOESSIRIALOY) S1ssns o)) Alisug
“sfuweg A3sau3 1n0qE F0MPY JANEP 01 dn a5 sem puny [gaq 1seg Adusug

-swuwseiBoud (w9 puepors afelusapy Jsue) alEnpess gl jo wed se sussgug Asisnun oy stuesd Buipuny spsosd yBarquips yo Apssiaaun

“sisanbay [ensRpR) gep Ajpuey yinguipd 20mpy suazng) digy 00 yueg samlen uouy Loddns [eRueuy 250 03 0 135 Sem pURy 1SIMIEN - S0P 1030

washs Buipaoosy 25 Mo ‘IS0 cluy Aua exep jo dn Buipaads pue Suwesdi wi [y J0 350 3Y) 51531 1BY1 LOREAOULE O PASN SEM JU IR YSTII006 S waoud Suipuny 1T sdusgeyd Yo
TWNERANG [230] L 30135 [H OS] 2umdian S0Py SUSINN YSI035 M3 3yl Ag PANEIEU SR SU0YD [SUOREL jLI 03 PISN SEM JUSWALSAOD YSII0S 31 woly Supung adua)iEy) yraan
“sialosd jewoney oy poddns Asoydag

pasanisp fjjedoq jo Loswedis 3yl spiemo) ‘pung Lounjesay 3andsig W AUl i uomduniued L pasn “eak snowaid B oLy premIoy YN0y SpUny Sem B [JUURLD)

“seduRjiewp Aampp Agod pue 20wEs euonesado o) suonn) w1 doj@eap pue puy oy dn 135 sem pung Pafosd 31038 og LE)

dwn.sm_Ei_..S ynads Susyoeas U0 PISNony pue RIomIaN Y Yk paudisap-od

o uSiedwe sy -aampe ASiua ¥9as 0) 3ydoad aSeinaaua o) ‘uSredwe) uogeinpa Luwnswod Juopyaam e poddns of dn jas sew JB puny e 51 a3, sdumes Alisug Big

SR WLanod ysnacas pue NN Ag papuny Aujod sem pue Sues KRU3 IN0GE 0Py JSNgRp 03 dn 135 sem (NS38) pomia sBumes Aizug 3

SwRpURdap ML pue ‘R0 pue 59 palie RPUuosiad BULUES-IR PUB 530104 PR 3YN S0 SI3LUS 304 30NEY apineud 01 dn 135 SEM PLNY SUBKIER, PASy PUE SIMPY S3085 paty

SpUny pajaugsey
spuny payeudisag %@ palouIsauun ‘paaLIsIy
£20T Yase pepus Jead ay Jod (panunuod) SENNODDY IHL OL SILON

Z6B6800S sejueient fq pajuy fuedwod pue 1£99100S AueyD ysmoas pausisiian v
XMYFHNG IDNAY SHIZILD 40 NOLLYIDOSSY HSILLOOS 3HL

(=%

Eco

G BO S im amm M =

8T



EZEZOT SIUMCdy [ENULTY PUBRDDS SAINDY SUSZ|HT

“S20U20g 28M0s pue asempuey Suipnjau ‘cneaung u sses Supuung 1) Loddns o dn13s sem (PANILIsA) SA0ES PRUBYS ALBWng) pung Bumiangsesu) ASopowsy]
“SpuawEInbal WIA-U0YE pue sanuaBumucd J0 1500 3y 133w 0] siueud Jagews oy Mdde oy xneaung a8esnoous 00 3o Juaudoganag aup Ag dn 135 sem pung SIS FRWS
‘sasea) Auadosd o pua Ayl 18 51500 PABCOSSE S0 pue suonepydesp 30 1500 Ayl Bunaaw »oy apoud 03 dn 125 S5em pung Auadoug Ayl

“awn j0 pouad B J2a0 'SIS00 [ERIE PUB [ENIIENU0D USIMIA] suoneniany 3y adeusw o) dn 125 sem Juawadeusy swweidorg

“MFETUUE Pamanas 20 e S| Sy 03 Sa3ieyd [BNUUE JSNa) LoIsEag auy) U1 SSUIMS Suning 104 moje a3 dn 135 U3 SEY PUNg WorsUad pareudisag Syl

“HuroBuo || 510 s

“sajEM g PUEfiul ul AJEYD JASIs 0 Ag apew Suag saBUByD 30 25NeI3 AIESS0AU 51 YIILM TENEOSIPY J0 JuBwadepdad 3u spuemeg dn 1as sem afoag a0wnpy [EI0 AL
“SUOLIPPE 1355 Pasld

5uwede 1250 ue se pue sasodand 12Spng 10y asuadis U S2 YIDY UMOYS 30 oY INypuRdee Epdes vieLED 3jgewa o dn 13 sem pung 1asse 3|glueu 1§ 1asse pauy pateusisag Ayl
WNERUNg 03 3PIEJIEAE S2MASAU PUE 51003 Butnoudie pue ue|diom dnewayl gl o AsnEp Ayl Sulgeus Ag sposiau ayl w Aneded ping o pasn ydiym Suippng Aydede)
"203|CRIS0D WO 51 SIL "ETOT JRGOIR0 L 3n1 Juam ey Ageuomaung exxe Bupnpul apesddn sofew e 1oy dn Tas sem 1afoud uswateday sandwo) 3psed ayL

aupysaiy v ouRsad gy 8 0 WS WO00[RAIP YL Loddns 0F PAEaD SEm puny Juswdojaaag SavD) Jaysuiy

“pomI3N Sy} oddns o) pasn 39 1534 USS SPUNY A5 MOY SUIPPREP 3D

JuswdoEasg s oy Joud ‘aompy 120 Spmod 03 xneaeng AQ 3o YIomM J0j BV wouy sIdi03) 133903 of dn 335 sEm eyl puny e 9 sjuawled Sy Aoncnogued Ul JwelLnaIy gL

SPUNJ PRNUSAINM BIYNM PRpnRU) pRreudisag

“saBuBYD AQunIas [ER0S 0 edw) aul 31E3NIL 0 dn 135 SBM PUNJ WIoYSY UM,

‘woddns Aagod Joy dn 3as sem puny 1alosd uDissuu0) ALSNpUg SEIEM

"pUEROS 10 10U A Sunsoddns ssosipy AU anag 3pwnosd 01 0 135 Sem puny saosinpy ASISU3 355

ey Waueq 0 SunepE Auewid S30puss LoResIuEW 2woou apwosd Pafesd epyigeuds

USLLBA0E YSHI0S A TZITT Ul pApUng “SUSIssse 2Py 1030 [RUUBRGIN QA0 150d awE oy Fuipuny gl xneaung apwosd o dn 135 sem pung wediow d [ - 3UNdRH IR0 SEDadS
"SR 1ga( Joy BUIPLINg JUBLILIBAND) YSIR0OS - AHADY 1GR3 1sERadS

-ayapduuo Mo 51511 Sy 03 paudisse asam Jel) saluedwed 350U Uo pasoduy sauy asn o dn 385 sem pung NO3 1§ ASSu3 Wuvds

“SIBPN0A JUBY POO 03 aagELsEe ue Jopd 03 95 Ag papuny sem 1ojid peed Busddoys

51500 Susn| J0 1500 03 UCAERJ Ul S2ansesa Auanyga ASsaua pue sjiq ASIsuR yog uo asppe 03 Woddns w siuesd apsoaud apinosd JuaURA0E YSM0oS

-auoyd 3U) BIA 30UPE [BI0] $53008 00 34N d AL 3|GELI 0 WIWUISA0S) YSHOSS Pue 1ML LOSLAGoN 241 woyy Bumpung yim dn 135 sewm puny (HyJS] SuldiEs a0npy SUSTRID YsHoos
"PRALSLEEYS LA aney SEm 3|doad 50§ 3URISIESY PUB IADY J3AISD D) 0N 135 SEM PUNY SSUISBMY WS

anpy A2izuz poddns oo ZTTT O PUI 3Y) 18 PALELS SeM PUNY 301US5 AIOSINDY LIEA, PUE BJES

“Buapuny 193 B AL WRIIM DIINPUL UBSG SeyY SR ZE/TT W

“pousd Aepio seunsuy) 150d 2y Suunp SUSILD 03 3Py Spnosd o) kneaing 01 Suipung JESWLIEN0E YSIR00S SIRqLISIP 01 dn 135 SEMm PUNY SRR 143P SBLUY 1504

suosuad sajdoad IN0ge AJLeLSESY PUB 2N I[P 01 O 135 SEM PUR S0UBPIND, fBSIM LoISUA4

"SANSS) GHN IN0QE SLIAIW0D 2518s suazno didy 0} dn 13s sem puny (SSid) 2aeasas Loddng pue BJNpY JUEEd

“SFUMELD

1=1pgam pue suoydaja) axej-al-ade) Ag ‘YIieaH EoUsUL 1Y) In0ge 2jdoad o) a0ipe anS o XNeaung S|geus oy dn 1as sem pung (AU YERH [ERueul Asuany) sye) Asuan
2qqnd 315 0} A0MpPE 1Gap o aud Oym SIBSINPE |je 03 3ApE pue Sumien pwvasd o0 dn 1as sem pung [SORLVIAY 0wy Asuoi

SPAOTY WO [BRS2YR [IELUS 3IM33S B Al 204Ny SUSIAL) 0} PR30 U0 SNEY DL SF3W0RST Roddng 01 adinpe JSiesaudd 2000l pagienTy

0T EAdy Ul PALRYSIRA SEM SIYLMSIWIRA0G YSIT005 1) A] PApUny Seam PUE SIaEW FNEM PUR 1504 “ASISUT U0 Ssawnsue Woddns o3 dn 355 Sem pung AJejoapy JALNSUO] papuny Axa)
“dysanod @ng pue Jq2p [2ng AN0gE SIUSID O3 SUORNG0S PUE 3ompe 28 01 “SeyD [ex0] 01 Suissen pue sjuesd apwoud og dn jas sem puny 1afosd dyan syl

SIESLUBASIUIE PUE SIA04R BN 351UB0022 0] ¥mEaeng w1 Sunom s5aaUNGoA, 03 spreme 2w o3 dn 335 sem punj US04 L 00 SULD IsAf

“sypar] Ke) Essnu Sulwiep H00ad J0) SIUEISISY PUE INAPY S3NEP 03 0N 335 sem pung [paud pesianun Ausuwoy) wier) o) diEH

Panuuod ‘Spuny PRIy

spung paieufisag | RIS PAILGSIY
£20Z e papua Jeal ay 104 (panumuod) SLNMOIDY IHL OL SILON

26869008 saueient Ag payun Auedwoo pue J£08L00S AuEYD Usoos paseysibal v
KMYFHNG IDNTY SNIZILID 40 NOLLYIDOSSY HSILLOOS JHL

E 88%: uw e3:zin

E
- B

2838 ﬁi:::lﬁ

o
=2 = ¥ x T

]
—



IHE SCO 1 5H ASSOCIATION UF CHHZENS ALVICE BUREAUX
A registered Scottish Charily SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SCOB9892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Restricted, Unrastricted & Daslg d Funds { i 1)
Fund balances at 31 March 2023 are represented by

Fized Nat Current Total Fixgd Maet Current Total

Aunets Anets £ Agets Agsts Astets & Agets
Pravisions Provisions

2023 2023 2023 022 2022 2023
Restricted Funds £ £ £ £ £ £
Armed Services Advice and Aged Veterans = 4,772 4,772 . 2,007 2,007
Big Enargy Savings Network BESN® s . K . 26,955 26,9585
Big Energy Savings Weak - - - = 2 =
Can Do Scotlint praject - - - - 76,810 76,810
Channal Extra . . . . . .
CivTech Challenge = Helpline . 1,326 1,326 . 215,534 215,534
Civtach Chall = Impraving Cada difig - - - - - -
Dabt Advies - Natwaest - =
Edinburgh Unlversity Interns - - - - - -
Energy Bast Daal . . . . 3,507 3,507
Energy Consumers Commission » a = = 2 a
EU Raadifirid - - - - -
U Sattlamant Home Difice Funding - - - - - .
U Settlement 56 Funding . 9,027 6,027 . 2,606 2,636
Extra Help Unlt - - - - - -
Gamble Awareness = 34,308 24, 308 = =
Gonaral Consumar Advocacy (Rest of Econamy) - - - - - -
Halp Ta Claim (farmarly Univarsal Credit) 16,415 3,584 19,909 53,016 {10,277) 42,439
Just Giving Otto Thoresen n 21,644 21,644 " 16,751 15,751
LEAP Projest - - - - - -
Lavy Funded Cansumar Advecacy - - - - -
Llayde Dabt Suppart - - - - -
Manay Advica (MATRICS) . . . . . .
Maeney Talks {fermerly Financlal Health Check) . . E = 1) (1)
Patiant Advica and Suppert Seiviee - 17,158 17,158 - 41,127 41,127
Pansion Wite/Guidanze 2 10,183 10,185 + 4,770 4770
Post Xmas dabt advice - - . - - .
Safe and Warm Advisory Service - 6,504 6,504 - {9,310) (2,310)
Seam Awareness - = B = = -
Seattish Citizens Advice Halpline {SCAH) - - - - -
5G Enargy Advice 12,504 - 32,484 . . .
shopping Card Pllot . 123,831 123,831 . 44,663 44,663
SPARK Energy & EON - - - = - .
Spacialist Debt Advies 54 Suppan = = = - = -
Spacialist Dabt Halpline - I Margan (50 Funded 21/22) - - - - 66,101 f6,101
Spinallifids project . . .
S5EN Energy Advisors . 10,853 10,853 . 43,392 49,392
Water Industry Commission project - - . = - .
Wellare Reform a i a . s
Rastricted Funds 41‘“! 12!,0“ 102,085 QM 16 550,065 008,181
Unrestricted designated funds
Accountant in Bankruptey DAS paymants - 178,417 178,417 - #5367 85,2687
Ayrshire CABS Davelapment & = i 2 18,817 19817
Cartle Computar Raplscamant Project . . - - - .
Capacity Bullding . 38,200 38,200
Dasignatad fised assat & Intangible assst fund 741,460 - 741,460 487,778 1100,644) 387,134
Digital Advice Project (farmerly Adviser Nat / CM3 replacemant) - - - - 335,832 325822
Panilon Fund * 140,000 140,000 = 140,000 140,000
Pragramme Management - 252,437 252,437 - 196,630 196,638
Property Fund . 434,937 434,937 . 443,344 443,344
Small Grantd Fund - (208) (208) - 58,600 58,600
Tachnology infrastructure Fund (formarly Shared Sarvices Restricted - transferrac s 1,506,643 1,506,643 - 790,209 700,269
Unrestricted designated funds Td1,460 2,550,426 3,291,888 487,778 1,859,208 2,446,981
Unrestricted general funds . 1,668,355 1,668,355 . 1042564 1,042,564
Total unrestricted funds 741,460 4,218,781 4,960,241 487,778 3,001,767 3,489,545
Total funds 740,458 4,471 867 5,262,324 541,004 8851833 4002938

*Funded by UK Governmant -Dapartment for Businass and Trade and Scottish Govarnmant
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THE SUL T HISH ASSULIA TIUN UF GHHZENS ALUVILE BUREAUA
A registered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC089892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Net cash (outflaw} from operating activities

Reconciliation of net In:nmlng] [outgoing) resourcas 2023
to net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities £
Net incoming / (outgoing) Resources 1,169,400
Interest receivable during year (9,032)
Praceeds from sale of fixed assets =
Operating surplus / (deficit) 1,160,368
Depreciation and amortisation 458,061
Repayments on Finance Leasa 100,644
{Increase)/Decrease in debtors (730,915)
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors 1,848,367
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities ZEQHEESIS

Financlal Instruments

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost Include the following:

2023
£
Financlal assets
Trade Debtors and amounts due from Bureaux 906,765
Accrued Income 311,457
Other Debtors 2,886
1,221,108
Financial liabilities
Trade Creditors (456,848)
Accruals (1,010,204)
Sundry Creditors (67,778)
(1,534,830)

No financial instruments are held at fair value,
Pension obligation regarding participation in multi-employer defined benefit plan

The Company participates in a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 950 non-associated
participating employers. The scheme Is a defined benefit scheme in the UK, It is not possible for the Campany to
obtain sufficlent information to anable it to account far the scheme as a defined benefit seheme. Therefare, it
accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

The schame is subject to the funding legislation outlined In the Pensions Act 2004, which came inta force on

30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technieal Actuarial
Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational
pension schemes In the UK,

The seheme is classified as a 'last man standing arrangement’. Therefore, the Company is potentially liable for
other participating employers’ liabilities if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit
following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the
scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2020. This valuation showed assets of
£800.3m, liabilities of £831.9m and a deficit of £31.6m.

Cilizens Advice Scotland Annual Accounts 2022/23

2022

(429,367)
(446)

(429,813)
522,829
134,148

15,043

(498,048)
5255.8111!

2022

341,888
354,867

4,937

701,692

(359,324)
(520,471)

(20,620
(900,415]
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THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A registered Scottish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC080892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Pension obligation regarding participation in muiti-employer defined benefit plan (continuad)

To eliminate this funding shortfall, the Trustees have asked the participating employers to pay additional contributions to the
scheme as follows:

Deficit contributions

From 1 April 2022 to 31 January 2025 £3,312,000 per annum
(payable monthly)

Unless a concession has been agreed with the Trustes the term to 31 January 2025 applies,

From 1 April 20189 to 31 September 2025 £11,243,000 par annum

(payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1" April)

The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line with thelr estimated share of the Series 1
and Series 2 liabllities,

Where the scheme Is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement the company recognises
a llabllity for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable
under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value Is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these
disclosures, The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost.

FR5102 DISCLOSURE REPORT

2023 2022
£ £
Present value of provision 32,355 50,751
Reconclliation of opening and elasing provisians
Provision at start of perlod 50,751 254,609
Unwinding of the discount factor (interast expensea) 958 1,468
Deficit contribution paid (18,490) (64,431)
Remeasurements - Impact of any changes in assumptions (864) {1,167)
Remeasuraments - amendments te the contribution schedule - {139,728
Provision at end of period 32,355 50,751
2023 2022
£ £
Income and Expenditure impact
Interast expense 958 1,468
Remeasurements - impact af any changes in assumptions (864) (1,167)
Remeasurements - amendmants to the contribution schedule = !139‘725!
94 (139 427!
2023 2022
% per annum % per annum
Assumptions
Rate of discount 552 2.35

The disceunt rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used te discount the future recovery plan
contributions due, would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery plan
contributions,
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THE SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAUX
A registered Scoltish Charity SC016637 and company limited by guarantee SC0B2892
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) For the year ended March 2023

Analysis of changes in net cash 22/23

At start of New Finance At end of
year CashFlows Leases year
£ E £ E
Cash 3,900,950 2,037,487 - 5,938,437
Finance Lease Obligations (100,644) 100,644 - i
Total 3,800,306 2,138,131 " 5,938,437

No loans are in place; the Finance Lease related to the purehase of PCs and laptops for the network.

Post Balance Sheet events
There are no significant post balance sheet events to note.
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